UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

Image: Construction of the securities and exchange act of1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008

OR

□ TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO .

Commission file number 001-14775

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware

(State of Incorporation or Organization)

84-0608431

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

5405 Spine Road, Boulder, Colorado 80301

(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(303) 665-5700

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer \Box Accelerated filer \boxtimes Non-accelerated filer \Box (Do not check if smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company \Box

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Act). Yes 🗆 No 🗵

The number of shares of Common Stock outstanding was 12,676,527 as of October 31, 2008.

Table of Contents

CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In particular, we direct your attention to Part I, Item 1- Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements; Item 2 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; Item 3 - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk; and Part II, Item 1A – Risk Factors. We intend the forward-looking statements throughout this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and the information incorporated by reference herein to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements. Statements contained in this report which are not historical facts are forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from projected results. All projections and statements regarding our expected financial position and operating results, our business strategy, our financing plans and the outcome of any contingencies are forward-looking statements can sometimes be identified by our use of forward-looking words such as "may," "believe," "plan," "anticipate," "estimate," "expect," "intend," and other phrases of similar meaning. The forward-looking information is based on information available as of the date of this quarterly report and on numerous assumptions and developments that are not within our control. Although we believe that our expectations as expressed in these forward-looking statements; we cannot assure you that our expectations will turn out to be correct. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include, but are not limited to, the following: the ability to obtain new contracts at attractive prices; the size and timing of customer orders and shipment; fluctuations in customer demand; fluctuations in foreign currencies; competitive factors; the timely completion of contracts; the timing and size of expenditures;

Table of Contents

INDEX

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1 - Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	4
<u>Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2008 (unaudited) and December 31, 2007</u> <u>Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 (unaudited)</u> <u>Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 (unaudited)</u> <u>Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 (unaudited)</u> <u>Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)</u>	4 6 7 8 10
Item 2 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	23
Item 3 - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	37
Item 4 - Controls and Procedures	37
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1 - Legal Proceedings	38
Item 1A - Risk Factors	38
Item 2 - Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	38
Item 3 - Defaults Upon Senior Securities	38
Item 4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	38
Item 5 - Other Information	38
Item 6 - Exhibits	39
Signatures	40

3

Table of Contents

Part I - - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in Thousands)

		otember 30, 2008 maudited)	De	cember 31, 2007
ASSETS				
CURRENT ASSETS:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	30,508	\$	9,045
Restricted cash	φ	50,508	Φ	371
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$617 and \$534, respectively		31.031		39,833
Inventories		40,900		41,628
Prepaid expenses and other		4,706		2,022
Related party receivable and loan		1,965		1,103
Current deferred tax assets		1,058		728
Total current assets		110,168		94,730
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT		56,303		49,590
Less - Accumulated depreciation		(17,594)		(14,144)
Property, plant and equipment, net		38,709		35,446
GOODWILL, net		44,797		45,862
PURCHASED INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net		54,876		61,914
		107		10
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS		107		42
OTHER ASSETS and		1 446		1 5 4 4
OTHER ASSETS, net		1,446		1,544
INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES		1,325		1,361
AVESTALIA AVOLAT VERTORES		1,525		1,501
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	251,428	\$	240,899

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Data)

		eptember 30, 2008 unaudited)	De	ecember 31, 2007
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
CURRENT LIABILITIES:				
Accounts payable	\$	18,722	\$	22,590
Accrued expenses	φ	3,502	φ	8,566
Accrued income taxes		993		1,212
Accrued employee compensation and benefits		5,292		5,521
Customer advances		4,780		4,593
Related party accounts payable and loans		520		325
Lines of credit - current		4,785		7,587
Current maturities on long-term debt		7,471		8,035
Current portion of capital lease obligations		382		389
Current portion of capital tease obligations		562		507
Total current liabilities		46,447		58,818
Total current habitues		40,447		38,010
LINES OF CREDIT		9,536		
LINES OF CREDIT		9,330		
LONG-TERM DEBT		60,440		61,530
LUNG-TERM DEBT		60,440		01,550
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS		218		521
CAFITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS		210		521
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES		18,040		20,604
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES		18,040		20,004
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES		907		1,147
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES		907		1,147
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES				
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES				
70 - 2 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 2		125 500		142 (20
Total liabilities		135,588		142,620
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:				
Preferred stock, \$.05 par value; 4,000,000 shares authorized; no issued and outstanding shares		—		—
Common stock, \$.05 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 12,665,027 and 12,433,768 shares issued and outstanding,				
respectively		634		622
Additional paid-in capital		40,939		38,246
Retained earnings		72,657		55,868
Other cumulative comprehensive income		1,610		3,543
Total stockholders' equity		115,840		98,279
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY	\$	251,428	\$	240,899

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

5

Table of Contents

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007 (Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Data)

(unaudited)

	Three more Septem	nths endeo iber 30,	1	Nine mon Septem		d
	 2008		2007	 2008		2007
NET SALES	\$ 52,380	\$	42,099	\$ 173,957	\$	109,964
COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD	35,355		27,807	120,171		72,741
Gross profit	 17,025	-	14,292	 53,786	-	37,223
COSTS AND EXPENSES:						
General and administrative expenses	3,679		1,903	10,612		5,419
Selling expenses	2,611		1,811	8,085		4,913
Amortization expense of purchased intangible assets	 1,363			 6,188		
Total costs and expenses	7,653		3,714	 24,885		10,332
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS	 9,372	-	10,578	 28,901	-	26,891

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Other income (expense)	(268)	23	(227)	3
Interest expense	(1,469)	(20)	(4,203)	(20)
Interest income	153	233	477	598
Equity in earnings (losses) of joint ventures	 (19)		270	
		10.011		
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES	7,769	10,814	25,218	27,472
INCOME TAX PROVISION	 546	3,697	6,535	9,813
NET INCOME	\$ 7,223	\$ 7,117	\$ 18,683	\$ 17,659
INCOME PER SHARE:				
Basic	\$ 0.58	\$ 0.59	\$ 1.50	\$ 1.47
Diluted	\$ 0.57	\$ 0.58	\$ 1.49	\$ 1.44
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING:				
Basic	12,463,060	12,094,181	12,426,369	12,039,593
Diluted	 12,567,912	12,301,772	12,572,226	12,245,212
ANNUAL DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE	\$ 	<u>\$ </u>	\$ 0.15	\$ 0.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

6

Table of Contents

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 (Amounts in Thousands) (unaudited)

	Commo	on Stoo	:k	Additional Paid-In		Retained	c	Other Cumulative omprehensive		Comprehensiv Income	e
	Shares	A	Amount	Capital]	Earnings		Income	Total	for the Period	1
Balances, December 31, 2007	12,434	\$	622	\$ 38,246	\$	55,868	\$	3,543	\$ 98,279		
Shares issued for stock option exercises	74		4	224				_	228		
Restricted stock awards	153		8	(8)		_		_			
Shares issued in connection with the employee stock											
purchase plan	4		—	105				_	105		
Excess tax benefit related to stock options	—		_	9				_	9		
Stock-based compensation	—		_	2,363				_	2,363		
Dividends declared	—		_			(1,894)		_	(1,894)		
Net income	—		—	—		18,683		_	18,683	18,	683
Derivative valuation adjustment, net of tax of \$48	—		_					77	77		77
Change in cumulative foreign currency translation											
adjustment	—		_					(2,010)	(2,010)	(2,	010)
Balances, September 30, 2008	12,665	\$	634	\$ 40,939	\$	72,657	\$	1,610	\$ 115,840	\$ 16,	750

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

7

Table of Contents

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007 (Dollars in Thousands) (unaudited)

	2008	2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
Net income	\$ 18,683 \$	17,659
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities -		
Depreciation (including capital lease amortization)	3,621	1,394
Amortization of purchased intangible assets	6,188	—
Amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs	210	_
Stock-based compensation	2,363	912
Deferred income tax benefit	(2,735)	(239)
Equity in earnings of joint ventures	(270)	—
Change in -		
Restricted cash	_	3,059
Accounts receivable, net	7,631	2,001
Inventories	262	(13,541)
Prepaid expenses and other	(2,549)	(636)
Accounts payable	(3,771)	3,125
Customer advances	218	132
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	(5,046)	(1,065)

Net cash provided by operating activities	24,805	12,801
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	(7,325)	(7,347)
Change in other non-current assets	50	(11)
Net cash used in investing activities	(7,275)	(7,358)
Net cash used in investing activities	(7,275)	(7,358)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

8

Table of Contents

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007 (Dollars in Thousands) (unaudited)

	2008	2007
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Borrowings on bank lines of credit, net	7,247	_
Payment on term loan with French bank	(441)	(389)
Payment on Nord LB term loans	(810)	_
Payment of capital lease obligations	(308)	—
Payment of dividends	(1,894)	(1,821)
Payment of deferred debt issuance costs	(167)	—
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock to employees and directors	333	563
Excess tax benefit related to exercise of stock options	9	5
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	3,969	(1,642)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH	(36)	357
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	21,463	4,158
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the period	9,045	17,886
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the period	\$ 30,508	\$ 22,044

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

9

Table of Contents

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Data)

(unaudited)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The information included in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is unaudited but includes all normal and recurring adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the interim periods presented. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements that are included in the Company's Annual Report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Only subsidiaries in which controlling interests are maintained are consolidated. The equity method is used to account for our ownership in subsidiaries where we do not have controlling interest. All significant intercompany accounts, profits, and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Operations and Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The functional currency for the Company's foreign operations is the applicable local currency for each affiliate company. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries for which the functional currency is the local currency are translated at exchange rates in effect at period-end, and the statements of operations are translated at the average exchange rates during the period. Exchange rate fluctuations on translating foreign currency financial statements into U.S. dollars that result in unrealized gains or losses are referred to as translation adjustments. Cumulative translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of stockholders' equity and are included in other cumulative comprehensive income. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the local currency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time such transactions arise. Subsequent changes in exchange rates result in transaction gains and losses which are reflected in income as unrealized (based on period-end translations) or realized upon settlement of the transactions. Cash flows from the Company's operations in foreign countries are translated at actual exchange rates when known or at the average rate for the period. As a result, amounts related to assets and liabilities reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows will not conform with changes in the corresponding

balances in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The effects of exchange rate changes on cash balances held in foreign currencies are reported as a separate line item below cash flows from financing activities.

10

Table of Contents

Revenue Recognition

Sales of clad metal products and welding services are generally based upon customer specifications set forth in customer purchase orders and require the Company to provide certifications relative to metals used, services performed and the results of any non-destructive testing that the customer has requested be performed. All issues of conformity of the product to specifications are resolved before the product is shipped and billed. Products related to the oilfield products segment, which include detonating cords, detonators, bi-directional boosters and shaped charges, as well as seismic related explosives and accessories, are standard in nature. In all cases, revenue is recognized only when all four of the following criteria have been satisfied: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; the price is fixed or determinable; delivery has occurred; and collection is reasonably assured. For contracts that require multiple shipments, revenue is recorded only for the units included in each individual shipment. If, as a contract proceeds toward completion, projected total cost on an individual contract indicates a potential loss, the Company will account for such anticipated loss.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has related party transactions with its unconsolidated joint ventures, as well as with the minority partner of one of its consolidated joint ventures. A summary of those transactions for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 is presented below:

		hs ended er 30, 2008				hs ended er 30, 2008	
	Sales to		terest ne from		Sales to		erest ne from
Perfoline	\$ 115	\$	11	\$	162	\$	37
DYNAenergetics RUS	1,008				2,145		
Minority Interest Partner	 547		<u> </u>	. <u></u>	1,531		<u> </u>
Total	\$ 1,669	\$	11	\$	3,838	\$	37

A summary of related party balances as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 is presented below:

		As of Septer	nber 30, 20	08		As of Decen	nber 31, 2	007
	Accounts receivable and loan to		pa	counts wable oan from	Accounts receivable and loan to		Accounts payable and loan from	
Perfoline	\$	451	\$	137	\$	523	\$	120
DYNAenergetics RUS		660				449		_
KazDYNAenergetics		_		_		131		
Minority Interest Partner		854		383				205
Total	\$	1,965	\$	520	\$	1,103	\$	325
	1	1						

Table of Contents

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS recognizes the potential dilutive effects of dilutive securities. The following represents a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS:

		For the three months ended September 30, 2008 Per share Income Shares Amount				
Net income ilutive effect of options to purchase common stock ilutive effect of restricted stock awards iluted earnings per share: Net income ilutive effect of options to purchase common stock ilutive effect of restricted stock awards						
Net income ive effect of options to purchase common stock ive effect of restricted stock awards ed earnings per share: Net income ive effect of options to purchase common stock ive effect of restricted stock awards ed earnings per share:						
Dilutive effect of options to purchase common stock Dilutive effect of restricted stock awards Diluted earnings per share: Net income Dilutive effect of options to purchase common stock Dilutive effect of restricted stock awards Diluted earnings per share:	\$	7,223	12,463,060	\$	0.58	
Dilutive effect of options to purchase common stock		_	93,260			
Net income tive effect of options to purchase common stock tive effect of restricted stock awards ted earnings per share: Net income tive effect of options to purchase common stock tive effect of restricted stock awards ted earnings per share: Net income			11,592			
Diluted earnings per share:						
Net income	\$	7,223	12,567,912	\$	0.57	
		For the three months ended Septemb				
		Income	Shares		r share mount	
Basic earnings per share:						
	\$	7,117	12,094,181	\$	0.59	
Dilutive effect of options to purchase common stock		_	182,455			
Dilutive effect of restricted stock awards			25,136			
Diluted earnings per share:						
	<u>\$</u>	7,117	12,301,772	\$	0.58	
		For the nine i	months ended Septemb	er 30. 2008		
		Income	Shares	Pe	r share mount	

Basic earnings per share:				
Net income		\$ 18,683	12,426,369	\$ 1.50
Dilutive effect of options to purchase common stock			120,374	
Dilutive effect of restricted stock awards		 	25,483	
Diluted earnings per share:				
Net income		\$ 18,683	12,572,226	\$ 1.49
	12			

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007						
Income	Shares		r share mount			
\$ 17,659	12,039,593	\$	1.47			
	191,652					
	13,967					
\$ 17,659	12,245,212	\$	1.44			
	Income \$ 17,659 	Income Shares \$ 17,659 12,039,593 — 191,652 — 13,967	Income Shares Pe \$ 17,659 12,039,593 \$			

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements* ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 was initially effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The FASB issued a staff position statement ("FSP") in February 2008 that deferred the required implementation date of SFAS 157 for certain assets and liabilities. The adoption of SFAS 157 in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 did not have a material impact on the Company's results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, *The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.* This Statement permits entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect the fair value option for any of its existing financial assets and liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), *Business Combinations* and SFAS No. 160, *Accounting and Reporting of Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements*, an amendment of ARB No. 51. These new standards will significantly change the accounting for and reporting of business combination transactions and noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated financial statements. SFAS Nos. 141(R) and 160 are required to be adopted simultaneously and are effective for the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Thus, we are required to adopt these Standards on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company is in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS Nos. 141(R) and 160 will have on its results of operations or financial position.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, *Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities*. SFAS 161 requires additional disclosures related to the use of derivative instruments, the accounting for derivatives and how derivatives impact financial statements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 161 on our consolidated financial statements.

13

Table of Contents

3. ACQUISITION

On November 15, 2007, the Company and a newly-formed subsidiary, DYNAenergetics Holding GmbH (the "Purchaser"), entered into a Purchase, Sale and Assignment Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with Rolf Rospek, Patrick Xylander, Uwe Gessel, and Oag Beteiligungs-GmbH, a German limited liability company (collectively the "Sellers"). Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, on November 15, 2007, the Purchaser acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of DYNAenergetics Beteiligungs-GmbH and all of the interests in DYNAenergetics GmbH and Co. KG (collectively, "DYNAenergetics") from the Sellers.

DYNAenergetics manufactures clad metal plates and various explosives-related oilfield products and operates under two business segments: Explosive Metalworking and Oilfield Products. The acquisition enhances the Company's ability to address growing worldwide demand for clad metal plates and expands the Company's position in the global explosion welding market. The addition of the Oilfield Products business segment will augment the Company's involvement in specialized explosive manufacturing processes and position the Company within the growing international oil and gas services industry.

As part of the Oilfield Products business segment, the Company has several joint ventures, some of which are unconsolidated and accounted for under the equity method (see Note 4).

The acquisition was valued at \$112,701 and was financed by (i) the payment of \$81,781 in cash, net of cash acquired of \$1,870 and transaction related taxes of \$3,708 (2,530 Euros) due from one of the Sellers and withheld by the Purchaser, (ii) the issuance of 251,041 shares of common stock of the Company (valued at \$13,509), and (iii) the assumption of approximately \$11,833 (8,074 Euros) of DYNAenergetics debt. The cash portion of the purchase price was financed using proceeds from the new syndicated credit agreement and existing available cash.

The purchase price of the acquisition was allocated to the Company's tangible and identifiable intangible assets based on their fair values as determined by appraisals performed as of the acquisition date. The excess of the purchase price over the tangible and identifiable intangible assets was recorded as goodwill.

The allocation of the purchase price to the assets and liabilities of DYNAenergetics was as follows:

Current assets	\$ 30,222
Property, plant and equipment	7,845
Intangible assets	62,794
Goodwill	45,985
Investment in joint ventures	1,324
Other assets	11
Total assets acquired	148,181
Current liabilities	14,524
Long term debt	11,833
Deferred tax liabilities	19,850
Other long term liabilities	1,096
Minority interest	10
Total liabilities acquired	47,313
•	
Net assets acquired	\$ 100,868
<u>^</u>	

The Company acquired identifiable finite-lived intangible assets as a result of the acquisition of DYNAenergetics. The finite-lived intangible assets acquired are preliminarily classified and valued as follows:

			Weighted Average Amortization
	,	Value	Period
Core technology	\$	24,531	20 years
Customer relationships		33,099	9 years
Trademarks / Trade names		2,672	9 years
Order backlog DYNAplat		2,492	Within 1 year
Total intangible assets	\$	62,794	

The Company acquired goodwill in the amount of \$45,985 as a result of the acquisition of DYNA energetics. The amount of goodwill assigned to each reportable segment is as follows:

	Value
Explosive Metalworking	\$ 25,258
Oilfield Products	20,727
Total goodwill	\$ 45,985

Goodwill as of September 30, 2008 amounts to \$44,797 and the change from December 31, 2007 reflects the impact of foreign currency translation and subsequent purchase price adjustments resulting from the compilation of additional acquisition related expenses.

15

Table of Contents

The following table presents the unaudited, pro-forma combined results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 assuming (i) the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2007; (ii) pro-forma amortization expense of the purchased intangible assets and (iii) pro-forma interest expense assuming the Company utilized its syndicated credit agreement to finance the acquisition:

	Three months ended September 30, 2007	Nine months ended September 30, 2007			
Net sales	\$ 60,180	\$	154,195		
Income from operations	\$ 12,483	\$	28,315		
Net income	\$ 7,346	\$	15,793		
Net income per share:					
Basic	\$ 0.60	\$	1.28		
Diluted	\$ 0.59	\$	1.26		

The pro-forma results above are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have actually occurred if the acquisition had been in effect on the dates indicated, nor are they necessarily indicative of future results of the combined companies.

4. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Operating results include the Company's proportionate share of income from joint ventures, which consist of unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method. These investments (all of which resulted from the acquisition of DYNAenergetics and pertain to the Company's Oilfield Products business segment) include the following: (1) 65.19% interest in Perfoline, which is a Russian manufacturer of perforating gun systems and (2) 55% interest in DYNAenergetics RUS which is a Russian trading company that sells the Company's oilfield products. Due to certain minority interest veto rights that effectively require the minority interest shareholders to participate in ordinary course of business decisions, these joint ventures have been accounted for under the equity method instead of being consolidated in these financial statements. Investments in these joint ventures totaled \$1,325 and \$1,361 as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Summarized unaudited financial information for the joint ventures accounted for under the equity method as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 is as follows:

	1	September 30, 2008			
Current assets	\$	4,099	\$	4,148	
Noncurrent assets		848		666	
Total assets	\$	4,947	\$	4,814	
Current liabilities	\$	1,151	\$	1,400	
Noncurrent liabilities		917		1,048	
Equity		2,879		2,366	
Total liabilities and equity	\$	4,947	\$	4,814	

	Three months ended September 30, 2008	Nine months ended September 30, 2008
Net sales	\$ 1,875	\$ 6,600
Gross profit	\$ 347	\$ 1,580
Operating income	\$ 120	\$ 908
Net income	\$ 60	\$ 595
Equity in earnings (losses) of joint ventures	\$ (19)	\$ 270

5. INVENTORY

The components of inventory are as follows at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

	2	nber 30, 008 udited)	De	cember 31, 2007
Raw materials	\$	12,628	\$	13,744
Work-in-process		21,992		23,699
Finished goods		5,293		3,564
Supplies		987		621
	\$	40,900	\$	41,628
	1′	7		

Table of Contents

6. PURCHASED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents details of our purchased intangible assets, other than goodwill, as of September 30, 2008:

		Acc	umulated	
	 Gross	Am	ortization	 Net
Core technology	\$ 24,185	\$	(1,058)	\$ 23,127
Customer relationships	32,633		(3,173)	29,460
Trademarks / Trade names	2,634		(345)	2,289
Order backlog DYNAplat	2,456		(2,456)	
Total intangible assets	\$ 61,908	\$	(7,032)	\$ 54,876

The following table presents details of our purchased intangible assets, other than goodwill, as of December 31, 2007:

	Accumulated					
		Gross	Am	ortization	_	Net
Core technology	\$	24,653	\$	(154)	\$	24,499
Customer relationships		33,263		(461)		32,802
Trademarks / Trade names		2,685		(50)		2,635
Order backlog DYNAplat		2,504		(526)		1,978
Total intangible assets	\$	63,105	\$	(1,191)	\$	61,914

The decrease in the gross value of our purchased intangible assets from December 31, 2007 to September 30, 2008 is due to the impact of foreign currency translation.

7. DEBT

Lines of credit consist of the following at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

	September 30, 2008 (unaudited)	_	December 31, 2007
Syndicated credit agreement revolving loan	\$ 9,536	\$	—
Commerzbank revolving line of credit	1,173		3,225
Commerzbank line of credit	3,612		1,473

Deutsche Bank revolving line of credit		_	680
Nord LB line of credit			2,209
		14,321	7,587
Less current portion		(4,785)	(7,587)
Long-term lines of credit		\$ 9,536 \$	_
•			
	18		

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

	Se	ptember 30, 2008	D	ecember 31, 2007
	(unaudited)			
Syndicated credit agreement term loan	\$	45,000	\$	45,000
Syndicated credit agreement Euro term loan		20,229		20,621
Euro term loan - French bank		_		427
Nord LB 3,000 Euro term loan		2,601		3,314
Nord LB 500 Euro term loan		81		203
		67,911		69,565
Less current maturities		(7,471)		(8,035)
			-	
Long-term debt	\$	60,440	\$	61,530

Loan Covenants and Restrictions

The Company's existing loan agreements include various covenants and restrictions, certain of which relate to the incurrence of additional indebtedness, mortgaging, pledging or disposition of major assets, limits on capital expenditures and maintenance of specified financial ratios. As of September 30, 2008, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants and other provisions of its debt agreements.

Swap Agreement

On November 15, 2007, the Company entered into an interest swap agreement that effectively converted the LIBOR based variable rate borrowings under the \$45,000 term loan to a fixed rate of 6.34%. The company has designated the swap agreement as an effective cash flow hedge with matched terms in accordance with SFAS No. 133, *Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities*, and as a result, changes in the fair value of the swap agreement are recorded in other comprehensive income with the offset as a swap asset or liability. As of September 30, 2008, the fair value of the swap agreement was a liability of \$70, net of tax. The swap agreement expires on November 16, 2008.

On October 15, 2008, the Company entered into a new two-year interest rate swap agreement which becomes effective on November 17, 2008. Similar to the interest rate swap agreement described above, this new agreement will effectively convert the LIBOR based variable rate US borrowings to a fixed rate of 4.87% and the Company has designated this new swap agreement as an effective cash flow hedge with matched terms in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized in the following three segments: Explosive Metalworking, Oilfield Products and AMK Welding. The Explosive Metalworking segment uses explosives to perform metal cladding and shock synthesis of industrial diamonds. The most significant product of this group is clad metal which is used in the fabrication of pressure vessels, heat exchangers and transition joints for various industries, including upstream oil and gas, oil refinery, petrochemicals, hydrometallurgy, aluminum production, shipbuilding, power generation, industrial refrigeration, and similar industries. The Oilfield Products segment manufactures, markets and sells oilfield perforating equipment and explosives, including detonating cords, detonators, bi-directional

10	

Table of Contents

boosters and shaped charges, and seismic related explosives and accessories. AMK Welding utilizes a number of welding technologies to weld components for manufacturers of jet engines and ground-based turbines.

The accounting policies of all the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Company's reportable segments are separately managed strategic business units that offer different products and services. Each segment's products are marketed to different customer types and require different manufacturing processes and technologies. Segment information is presented for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 as follows:

	Met	xplosive alworking Group	Oilfield Products		AMK Velding	Total
For the three months ended September 30, 2008:	-			_		
Net sales	\$	42,703	\$ 6,756	\$	2,921	\$ 52,380
Depreciation and amortization	\$	1,574	\$ 947	\$	109	\$ 2,630
Income from operations	\$	8,593	\$ 725	\$	874	\$ 10,192
Equity in earnings (losses) of joint ventures	\$	_	\$ (19)	\$	_	(19)
Unallocated amounts:			 			
Stock-based compensation						(820)
Other expense						(268)
Interest expense						(1,469)
Interest income						153

		Explosive Metalworking Group		orking AMK		Total
For the three months ended September 30, 2007:					weiding	 Total
Net sales		\$	40,326	\$	1,773	\$ 42,099
Depreciation		\$	402	\$	82	\$ 484
Income from operations		\$	10,646	\$	325	\$ 10,971
Unallocated amounts:						
Stock-based compensation						(393)
Other income						23
Interest expense						(20)
Interest income						 233
Consolidated income before income taxes						\$ 10,814
	20					

	Met	xplosive talworking Group	Oilfield Products	AMK Welding	Total
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008:					
Net sales	\$	147,344	\$ 19,128	\$ 7,485	\$ 173,957
Depreciation and amortization	\$	6,619	\$ 2,866	\$ 324	\$ 9,809
Income from operations	\$	28,393	\$ 775	\$ 2,096	\$ 31,264
Equity in earnings of joint ventures	\$		\$ 270	\$ 	270
Unallocated amounts:				 	
Stock-based compensation					(2,363)
Other expense					(227)
Interest expense					(4,203)
Interest income					477
Consolidated income before income taxes					\$ 25,218

	Explosive Metalworking Group	AMK Welding		Total
For the nine months ended September 30, 2007:	 •	 <u> </u>		
Net sales	\$ 105,257	\$ 4,707	\$	109,964
Depreciation	\$ 1,190	\$ 204	\$	1,394
Income from operations	\$ 27,197	\$ 606	\$	27,803
Unallocated amounts:	 ,,			
Stock-based compensation				(912)
Other income				3
Interest expense				(20)
Interest income				598
Consolidated income before income taxes			\$	27,472

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 no sales to any one customer accounted for more than 10% of total net sales. During the three months ended September 30, 2007, sales to one customer represented approximately \$7,333 (17%) of total net sales. During the nine months ended September 30, 2007, no sales to any one customer accounted for more than 10% of total net sales.

9. **COMPREHENSIVE INCOME**

The Company's comprehensive income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

	Three Months Ended September 30,					Nine Mont Septem	ed
		2008		2007		2008	2007
Net income for the period	\$	7,223	\$	7,117	\$	18,683	\$ 17,659
Interest rate swap valuation adjustment, net of tax		167				77	
Foreign currency translation adjustment		(9,117)		898	_	(2,010)	 1,158
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(1,727)	\$	8,015	\$	16,750	\$ 18,817
	21						

Table of Contents

Accumulated other cumulative comprehensive income as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 consisted of the following:

	1	September 30, 2008		ember 31, 2007
	(una	udited)		
Currency translation adjustment	\$	1,680	\$	3,690
Interest rate swap valuation adjustment, net of tax of \$42 and \$90, respectively		(70)		(147)

1,610 \$ 3,543

Table of Contents

ITEM 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our historical consolidated financial statements and notes, as well as the selected historical consolidated financial data that are included in the Company's Annual Report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Unless stated otherwise, all dollar figures in this discussion are presented in thousands (000's).

Executive Overview

Historically, our business has been organized into two segments: Explosive Metalworking (which we also refer to as DMC Clad) and AMK Welding. On November 15, 2007, we acquired 100% ownership of a German company, DYNAenergetics. DYNAenergetics operates two distinct businesses which have historically been known as DYNAplat and DYNAwell. DYNAplat is a manufacturer of explosion clad products similar to those manufactured by DMC Clad, and its operating results from the date of acquisition are included in our Explosive Metalworking segment. DYNAwell manufactures a number of products for the perforation of oil and gas wells and also distributes a line of seismic products for oil and gas exploration activities. DYNAwell's operating results from the date of acquisition are reported under a new segment that we have named "Oilfield Products."

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, Explosive Metalworking accounted for 85% of our net sales and 91% of our income from operations before consideration of stock-based compensation expense, which is not allocated to our business segments. Our AMK Welding and Oilfield Products segments accounted for 4% and 11%, respectively, of our year-to-date 2008 net sales.

Our net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, which include \$44,099 of sales from our recently acquired DYNAenergetics' businesses, increased by \$63,993 (58.2%) compared to the first nine months of 2007, reflecting year-to-year net sales increases of \$42,087 (40.0%) and \$2,778 (59.0%) for our Explosive Metalworking and AMK Welding segments, respectively, and a sales contribution of \$19,128 from our new Oilfield Products segment. Income from operations increased by 7.5% to \$28,901 in the first nine months of 2008 from \$26,891 in the first nine months of 2007, reflecting improvements in Explosive Metalworking's and AMK Welding's operating income of \$1,196 and \$1,490, respectively, that were partially offset by a \$1,451 increase in stock-based compensation expense. Our Oilfield Products segment reported operating income of \$775 in the first nine months of 2008. Our net income increased by 5.8% to \$18,683 for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 from \$17,659 in the same period of 2007.

Net sales

Explosive Metalworking's revenues are generated principally from sales of clad metal plates and sales of transition joints, which are made from clad plates, to customers that fabricate industrial equipment for various industries, including oil and gas, petrochemicals, alternative energy, hydrometallurgy, aluminum production, shipbuilding, power generation, industrial refrigeration and similar industries. While demand for our clad metal products in the United States is largely driven by new plant construction and large plant expansion projects, maintenance and retrofit projects at existing chemical processing, petrochemical processing and oil refining facilities also account for a significant portion of total demand. In contrast to the U.S. market,

Table of Contents

demand for our clad products in Europe and Asia is more dependent on new construction projects, such as the building of new Purified Terephthalic Acid ("PTA") plants in different parts of the world, including China, and on sales of electrical transition joints that are used in the aluminum production industry.

Oilfield Products' revenues are generated principally from sales of shaped charges, detonators and detonating cord, boosters, and perforating guns to customers who perform the perforation of oil and gas wells and from sales of seismic products to customers involved in oil and gas exploration activities.

AMK Welding's revenues are generated from welding, heat treatment, and inspection services that are provided with respect to customer-supplied parts for customers primarily involved in the power generation industry and aircraft engine markets.

A significant portion of our revenue is derived from a relatively small number of customers; therefore, the failure to complete existing contracts on a timely basis, to receive payment for such services in a timely manner, or to enter into future contracts at projected volumes and profitability levels could adversely affect our ability to meet cash requirements exclusively through operating activities. We attempt to minimize the risk of losing customers or specific contracts by continually improving product quality, delivering products on time, and competing favorably on the basis of price.

DMC Clad's business is cyclical since it is linked to its customers' end-market activity. For example, the construction cycle for new manufacturing capacity in the chemical industry has historically been one characterized by significant amplitude. It is driven both by global economic demand growth and capacity utilization. As capacity starts to become tight for various chemicals and prices begin to rise, new manufacturing capacity is added in relatively large incremental amounts.

Gross profit and cost of products sold

Cost of products sold for Explosive Metalworking include the cost of metals and alloys used to manufacture clad metal plates, the cost of explosives, employee compensation and benefits, freight, outside processing costs, depreciation of manufacturing facilities and equipment, manufacturing supplies, and other manufacturing overhead expenses.

Cost of products sold for Oilfield Products include the cost of metals, explosives and other raw materials used to manufacture shaped charges, detonating products, and perforating guns as well as employee compensation and benefits, depreciation of manufacturing facilities and equipment, manufacturing supplies, and other manufacturing overhead expenses.

AMK Welding's cost of products sold consists principally of employee compensation and benefits, welding supplies (wire and gas), depreciation of manufacturing facilities and equipment, outside services, and other manufacturing overhead expenses.

Income taxes

Our effective income tax rate decreased to 25.9% for the first nine months of 2008 from 35.7% for the same period of 2007. Income tax provisions on the earnings of Nobelclad, Nitro Metall, DYNAenergetics and our German and Luxembourg holding companies have been provided based upon the respective French, Swedish, German and

Luxembourg statutory tax rates. Based upon existing tax regulations and current federal, state and foreign statutory tax rates, we expect our full year 2008 blended effective tax rate on our consolidated pre-tax income to

24

Table of Contents

approximate 27%. We currently expect our blended effective tax rate for 2009 to increase to a range from 31% to 32%.

Backlog

We use backlog as a primary means of measuring the immediate outlook for our business. We define "backlog" at any given point in time to consist of all firm, unfulfilled purchase orders and commitments at that time. Generally speaking, we expect to fill most backlog orders within the following 12 months. From experience, most firm purchase orders and commitments are realized. However, since orders may be rescheduled or canceled, and a significant portion of our net sales is derived from a small number of customers, backlog is not necessarily indicative of future sales levels. Moreover, we cannot be sure of when during the future 12-month period we will be able to recognize revenue corresponding to our backlog nor can we be sure that revenues corresponding to our backlog will not fall into periods beyond the 12-month horizon.

Our backlog with respect to the Explosive Metalworking segment, which totaled approximately \$100,000 at the beginning of 2008, decreased during the current quarter to approximately \$98,610 at September 30, 2008 from approximately \$104,871 at June 30, 2008. Approximately \$4 million of the backlog reduction from June 30 to September 30 relates to the change in the Euro to U.S. dollar exchange rate as of the respective quarter-end dates.

Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 Compared to Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007

Net sales					
	Three Mon Septem		d		Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
Net sales	\$ 52,380	\$	42,099	\$ 10,281	24.4%
	 Nine Mon Septem	ths Ended iber 30,	Į		Percentage
	2008		2007	 Change	Change
Net sales	\$ 173,957	\$	109,964	\$ 63,993	58.2%

Net sales for the third quarter of 2008 increased 24.4% to \$52,380 from \$42,099 in the third quarter of 2007. Explosive Metalworking sales increased 5.9% to \$42,703 in the three months ended September 30, 2008 (81% of total sales) from \$40,326 in the same period of 2007 (96% of total sales). The increase in Explosive Metalworking sales reflects a sales contribution of \$5,622 from the DYNAplat division of DYNAenergetics that offset the decreased sales of \$3,245 from our other DMC Clad divisions.

Oilfield Products contributed \$6,756 to third quarter 2008 sales (13% of total sales).

AMK Welding contributed \$2,921 to third quarter 2008 sales (6% of total sales), which represents a 64.7% increase from sales of \$1,773 in the third quarter of 2007 (4% of total sales). The increase in AMK's sales relates principally to increase from ground-based gas turbine work.

Net sales for the first nine months of 2008 increased 58.2% to \$173,957 from \$109,964 in the first nine months of 2007. Explosive Metalworking sales increased 40.0% to \$147,344 in the

J

Table of Contents

nine months ended September 30, 2008 (85% of total sales) from \$105,257 in the same period of 2007 (96% of total sales). The significant increase in Explosive Metalworking sales reflects a sales contribution of \$24,971 from the DYNAplat division of DYNAenergetics and increased sales of \$17,116 from our other DMC Clad divisions which reflect the continued strong economic condition of the industries this business segment serves. At the end of this year's second quarter, we disclosed that third quarter 2008 sales were expected to be up to 20% less than the \$52,996 in sales that we reported in the second quarter due to longer lead times on carbon steel supply in the United States. Actual third quarter sales of \$42,703 were 19.4% below those of the second quarter. We have seen some improvement in carbon steel deliveries and expect our fourth quarter sales to return to the level that we enjoyed in the second quarter.

Oilfield Products contributed \$19,128 to first nine months 2008 sales (11% of total sales). Fourth quarter sales are expected to be 20% to 25% higher than the \$6,756 in sales that Oilfield Products reported in the third quarter.

AMK Welding contributed \$7,485 to sales for the first nine months 2008 (4% of total sales), which represented a 59.0% increase from sales of \$4,707 in the first nine months of 2007 (4% of total sales). As indicated above, AMK's 2008 sales relate principally to increased revenues from ground-based gas turbine work. Third quarter sales at AMK were stronger than expected as a result of earlier than planned shipments of certain orders. We expect AMK's fourth quarter sales to decline to a level that is more consistent with amounts that we reported in the first and second quarter of this year (\$2,299 and \$2,265, respectively).

Gross profit

	Three Mor Septem		Percentage		
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
Gross profit	\$ 17,025	\$	14,292	\$ 2,733	19.1%
Consolidated gross profit margin rate	32.5%)	33.9%		
	Nine Mon	ths Ende	ed		
	 Septem	ber 30,			Percentage
	2008		2007	 Change	Change
Gross profit	\$ 53,786	\$	37,223	\$ 16,563	44.5%
Consolidated gross profit margin rate	30.9%		33.9%		

Gross profit increased by 19.1% to \$17,025 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 from \$14,292 for the three months ended September 30, 2007. Our third quarter 2008 consolidated gross profit margin rate decreased to 32.5% from 33.9% in the third quarter of 2007. The gross profit margin rate for Explosive Metalworking decreased from 34.3% in the third quarter of 2007 to 31.9% in the third quarter of 2008, for the reasons discussed below. The gross profit margin rate for AMK Welding

increased to 37.9% in the third quarter of 2008 from 27.7% in the third quarter of 2007, with this improvement being largely attributable to the 64.7% increase in AMK's sales volume as discussed above. Oilfield Products reported a gross profit margin rate of 35.6% on its third quarter 2008 sales of \$6,756, which was higher than the normal gross margin level for this business due to a favorable third quarter product and customer mix.

26

Table of Contents

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, gross profit increased to \$53,786 from \$37,223 for the same period of 2007, a 44.5% increase. Our year to date consolidated gross profit margin grate decreased to 30.9% from 33.9% for the first nine months of 2007. The gross profit margin rate for Explosive Metalworking decreased to 30.6% from 34.3%. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, the gross profit margin rate for AMK Welding increased to 36.3% from 26.5% for the same period of 2007. Oilfield Products reported a gross profit margin rate of 32.4% for the first nine months of 2008, which is considered somewhat higher than the normal gross margin range for this business.

The decreased third quarter and year-to-date 2008 gross profit margin rates for Explosive Metalworking relates primarily to a higher proportion of sales by our European divisions in the first nine months of 2008 than in the first nine months of 2007 as a result of the DYNAenergetics acquisition. As mentioned above, the DYNAplat division of DYNAenergetics reported year-to-date 2008 sales of \$24,971. Historically, gross margins for our European explosion welding divisions, including those of the DYNAplat division, have generally been lower than those reported by our U.S. division.

Our third quarter consolidated gross margin of 32.5% was higher than expected as a result of the strong gross margins reported in the third quarter by both our Oilfield Products and AMK Welding segments as discussed above and higher than expected proportionate Explosive Metalworking sales by our U.S. division, which generally enjoys higher gross margins than our European Explosive Metalworking divisions. Based upon expected fourth quarter sales volume and normal quarter to quarter fluctuations in product mix, we expect our fourth quarter consolidated gross margin to be comparable to the gross margin rates that we reported in the first and second quarter of this year (30.3% and 30.1%, respectively).

General and administrative expenses

	Three Mor Septem	ths Endo ber 30,	ed		Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
General & administrative expenses	\$ 3,679	\$	1,903	\$ 1,776	93.3%
Percentage of net sales	7.0%		4.5%		
	Nine Mon	ths Ende	d		
	 Septem	ber 30,			Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
General & administrative expenses	\$ 10,612	\$	5,419	\$ 5,193	95.8%
Percentage of net sales	6.1%		4.9%		

General and administrative expenses increased by \$1,776, or 93.3%, to \$3,679 in the third quarter of 2008 from \$1,903 in the third quarter of 2007. Excluding \$1,050 of incremental general and administrative expenses that resulted from the DYNAenergetics acquisition, our general and administrative expenses increased by \$726 or 38.1%. This increase included a \$258 increase in stock-based compensation and an impact of \$172 from annual salary adjustments and staffing changes. As a percentage of net sales, general and administrative expenses increased to 7.0% in the third quarter of 2008 from 4.5% in the third quarter of 2007.

General and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 totaled \$10,612 compared to \$5,419 for the same period of 2007. This reflects an increase of 95.8%.

27

Table of Contents

Excluding \$3,388 of incremental general and administrative expenses for DYNAenergetics, our general and administrative expenses increased by \$1,805 or 33.3%. This increase reflects a \$909 increase in stock-based compensation and an impact of \$294 from annual salary adjustments and staffing changes. As a percentage of net sales, general and administrative expenses increased to 6.1% in the first nine months of 2008 from 4.9% in the first nine months of 2007.

Selling expenses

	Three Mor Septem	ths Endo ber 30,	ed		Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
Selling expenses	\$ 2,611	\$	1,811	\$ 800	44.2%
Percentage of net sales	5.0%		4.3%		
	Nine Mon	ths Ende	d		
	Septem	ber 30,			Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
Selling expenses	\$ 8,085	\$	4,913	\$ 3,172	64.6%
Percentage of net sales	4.6%		4.5%		

Selling expenses, which include sales commissions of \$270 in 2008 and \$663 in 2007, increased by 44.2% to \$2,611 in the third quarter of 2008 from \$1,811 in the third quarter of 2007. Excluding \$1,083 of incremental selling expenses that resulted from the DYNAenergetics acquisition, our selling expenses decreased by \$283 or 15.6%. This decrease reflects a \$393 decrease in sales commissions and a net decrease of \$113 in other expense categories that were partially offset by increases of \$119 in stock-based compensation expense and \$104 resulting from annual salary adjustments/staffing changes. As a percentage of net sales, selling expenses increased to 5.0% in the third quarter of 2008 from 4.3% in the third quarter of 2007.

Selling expenses increased by 64.6% to \$8,085 in the first nine months of 2008 from \$4,913 in the same period of 2007. These expenses include sales commission of \$892 and \$1,378 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Excluding \$2,747 of incremental selling expenses from DYNAenergetics, our selling expenses increased by \$425 or 8.6%. This increase reflects an increase in stock-based compensation expense of \$385, an impact of \$289 from annual salary adjustments and staffing changes, and a \$229 increase in travel expenses that were partially offset by a \$486 decrease in sales commissions. As a percentage of net sales, selling expenses increased to 4.6% in the first nine months of 2008 from 4.5% in the first nine months of 2007.

	Three Months Ended						D
		Septem 2008	ber 30,	2007		Change	Percentage Change
Amortization expense of purchased intangible assets	\$	1,363	\$		\$	1,363	NA
Percentage of net sales		2.6%		0.0	%		
	28						

	Nine Mon Septem			Percentage
	 2008	2007	Change	Change
Amortization expense of purchased intangible assets	\$ 6,188	\$ 	\$ 6,188	NA
Percentage of net sales	3.6%	0.0%		

Amortization expense relates entirely to the amortization of values assigned to intangible assets in connection with the November 15, 2007 acquisition of DYNAenergetics. Amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2008 includes \$945, \$315 and \$103 relating to values assigned to customer relationships, core technology and trademarks/trade names, respectively. Amortization expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 includes \$2,055, \$2,866, \$956 and \$311 relating to values assigned to order backlog, customer relationships, core technology and trademarks/trade names, respectively. Based upon the current foreign exchange rates, we expect amortization expense for 2008 to approximate \$7,500.

Income from operations

	Three Mo Septen	nths Endo 1ber 30,	ed		Percentage
	2008 2007		Change	Change	
Income from operations	\$ 9,372	\$	10,578	\$ (1,206)	(11.4)%
	 Nine Mon Septen	ths Ende ber 30,	d		Percentage
	2008		2007	 Change	Change
Income from operations	\$ 28,901	\$	26,891	\$ 2,010	7.5%

Income from operations decreased by 11.4% to \$9,372 in the third quarter of 2008 from \$10,578 in the third quarter of 2007. Explosive Metalworking reported income from operations of \$8,593 in the third quarter of 2008 as compared to \$10,646 in the third quarter of 2007. This 19.3% decrease in Explosive Metalworking operating income is largely attributable to a decline in the gross margin rate from 34.3% in 2007 to 31.9% in 2008 and increased operating expenses from the acquired DYNAplat business. Oilfield Products reported income from operations of \$725 for the third quarter of 2008. AMK Welding reported income from operations of \$874 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to \$325 for the same period of 2007. This significant increase is attributable to the \$1,148, or 64.7%, increase in sales as discussed above.

Income from operations increased by 7.5% to \$28,901 in the first nine months of 2008 from \$26,891 in the first nine months of 2007. Explosive Metalworking reported income from operations of \$28,393 in the first nine months of 2008 as compared to \$27,197 in the first nine months of 2007. This modest 4.4% increase reflects a favorable impact from the 40.0% sales increase discussed above that was offset by a decline in the gross margins rate from 34.3% in 2007 to 30.6% in 2008 and increased operating expenses from the acquired DYNAplat business. Oilfield Products reported income from operations of \$775 for the first nine months of 2008. AMK Welding reported income from operations of \$2,096 for the first nine months of 2008 as compared to \$606 for the first nine months of 2007, with this increase of \$1,490 reflecting a \$2,778, or 59.0%, increase in sales as discussed above.

29

Table of Contents

Income from operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 includes \$820 and \$2,363, respectively, of stock-based compensation expense compared to stock-based compensation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 of \$393 and \$912, respectively. This expense is not allocated to our business segments and thus is not included in the above third quarter and year to date operating income totals for Explosive Metalworking, Oilfield Products and AMK Welding.

Interest income (expense), net

	Three Mon Septem		l		Percentage
	 2008		2007	Change	Change
Interest income (expense), net	\$ (1,316)	\$	213	\$ (1,529)	NM
	 Nine Mont Septem	ber 30,			Percentage
	 2008		2007	 Change	Change
Interest income (expense), net	\$ (3,726)	\$	578	\$ (4,304)	NM

We recorded net interest expense of \$1,316 in the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to net interest income of \$213 in the same time period of 2007. We recorded net interest expense of \$3,726 in the first nine months of 2008 compared to net interest income of \$578 in the first nine months of 2007. During the first nine months of 2007, we were in a positive net cash position and earned interest on investment of excess cash balances. In connection with the acquisition of DYNAenergetics, we borrowed approximately \$65,000 under our new \$100,000 five-year credit facility, assumed approximately \$12,000 of DYNAenergetics' debt outstanding as of the acquisition date, and used approximately \$16,000 of our existing cash balances to finance the acquisition. As a result of this new indebtedness and a decrease in our cash position, we reported a significant amount of interest expense during the third quarter and first nine months of 2008.

Income tax provision

	Th	ree Montl	ıs Endec	1					
	September 30,						Percentage		
	2008			2007		Change	Change		
Income tax provision	\$	546	\$	3,697	\$	(3,151)	(85.2)%		

	7.0%		34.2%			
	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	 2008		2007		Change	Change
Income tax provision	\$ 6,535	\$	9,813	\$	(3,278)	(33.4)%
Effective tax rate	25.9%		35.7%			

We recorded an income tax provision of \$546 in the third quarter of 2008 compared to \$3,697 in the third quarter of 2007. The effective tax rate decreased to 7.0% in the third quarter of 2008 from 34.2% in the third quarter of 2007. The income tax provisions for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include \$83 and \$3,274, respectively, related to U.S. taxes,

Table of Contents

with the remainder relating to foreign taxes and foreign tax benefits associated with the operations of Nobelclad and its Swedish subsidiary, Nitro Metall, as well as the newly acquired DYNAenergetics division and related holding companies in Germany and Luxembourg. The third quarter 2008 effective tax rate of 7.0% represents a significant deviation from the expected full year 2008 effective tax rate of 32% to 33% that was disclosed at the end of the second quarter. The deviation arose primarily from the completion during the third quarter of an Internal Revenue Service examination and from adjustments that were identified during the third quarter 2008 preparation and filing of our 2007 federal and state tax returns. The closure of the Internal Revenue Service examination enabled the Company to record previously unrecognized tax benefits of approximately \$300. The "book-to-return" adjustments favorably impacted the third quarter tax provision by approximately \$1,100 and related primarily to apportionment factors utilized to compute state income taxes. As a result of these third quarter tax provision adjustments, we now expect our full year 2008 blended effective tax rate on our consolidated pre-tax income to approximate 27%. Our blended effective tax rate for 2009 is expected to increase to a range from 31% to 32%.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, we recorded an income tax provision of \$6,535 compared to \$9,813 for the same period of 2007. The effective tax rate decreased to 25.9% for the first nine months of 2008 from 35.7% for the first nine months of 2007. The income tax provisions for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include \$5,643 and \$8,317, respectively, related to U.S. taxes, with the remainder relating to foreign taxes and foreign tax benefits associated with the operations of Nobelclad, Nitro Metall, DYNAenergetics and our holding companies in Germany and Luxembourg. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was favorably impacted by the items noted above in the preceding paragraph.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations from a combination of internally generated cash flow, revolving credit borrowings, various long-term debt arrangements and the issuance of common stock. Prior to the November 15, 2007 acquisition of DYNAenergetics, we had no outstanding borrowings under our \$10,000 revolving credit facility with a U.S. bank and term debt outstanding of 290 Euros (approximately \$458) under a term loan with a French bank. In connection with the acquisition of DYNAenergetics, we terminated our \$10,000 revolving credit facility and entered into a five-year syndicated credit agreement. The credit agreement, which provides for term loans of \$45,000 and 14,000 Euros and revolving loans of \$25,000 and 7,000 Euros, is through a syndicate of seven banks. The credit facility in the approximate amount of \$100,000 expires on November 16, 2012. As of September 30, 2008, term loans of \$45,000 and 14,000 Euros (\$20,229) and revolving loans of 6,600 Euros (\$9,536) were outstanding under the new credit facility. Additionally, we have assumed outstanding debt obligations of DYNAenergetics, including lines of credit loans and term loans with outstanding amounts of \$4,785 and \$2,682, respectively, as of September 30, 2008.

We believe that cash flow from operations and funds available under our current credit facilities and any future replacement thereof will be sufficient to fund the working capital, debt service and capital expenditure requirements of our current business operations for the foreseeable future. Nevertheless, our ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operations will depend upon our success in executing our strategies. If we are unable to (i) realize sales from our backlog; (ii) secure new customer orders at attractive prices; (iii) successfully integrate the recently-acquired DYNAenergetics businesses; or (iv) continue to implement cost-effective internal processes, our ability to meet cash requirements through operating activities could be impacted. Furthermore, any restriction on the availability of borrowings under our credit facilities could negatively affect our ability to meet future cash requirements.

2	÷,
- 1	
-	2

Table of Contents

Debt and other contractual obligations and commitments

Our existing loan agreements include various covenants and restrictions, certain of which relate to the payment of dividends or other distributions to stockholders, redemption of capital stock, incurrence of additional indebtedness, mortgaging, pledging or disposition of major assets and maintenance of specified financial ratios. As of September 30, 2008, we were in compliance with all financial covenants and other provisions of our debt agreements.

The Company's principal cash flows related to debt obligations and other contractual obligations and commitments have not materially changed since December 31, 2007.

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows provided by operating activities for the first nine months of 2008 totaled \$24,805. Significant sources of operating cash flow included net income of \$18,683, non-cash depreciation and amortization expense of \$10,019 and stock-based compensation of \$2,363. These sources of operating cash flow were partially offset by a deferred income tax benefit of \$2,735, \$270 in equity in losses of joint ventures and net negative changes in various components of working capital in the amount of \$3,255. Net negative changes in working capital included increases in prepaid expenses of \$2,549 and decreases in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities of \$3,771 and \$5,046, respectively. These negative changes in working capital were partially offset by decreases in accounts receivable and inventories of \$7,631 and \$262, respectively, and increases in customer advances of \$218.

Net cash flows provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 totaled \$12,801. Significant sources of operating cash flow included net income of \$17,659, non-cash depreciation expense of \$1,394 and stock-based compensation of \$912. These sources of operating cash flow were offset by net negative changes in various components of working capital in the amount of \$6,925. Net negative changes in working capital included increases in inventories and prepaid expenses of \$13,541 and \$636, respectively, and decreases in accrued expenses and other liabilities of \$1,065. These negative changes in working capital were partially offset by decreases in restricted cash and accounts receivable of \$3,059 and \$2,001, respectively, and increases in accounts payable and customer advances of \$3,125 and \$132, respectively.

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows used by investing activities for the first nine months of 2008 totaled \$7,275 and consisted almost entirely of capital expenditures.

Net cash flows used in investing activities for the first nine months of 2007 totaled \$7,358 and consisted primarily of capital expenditures.

Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities for the first nine months of 2008 were \$3,969, which consisted primarily of net borrowings on bank lines of credit of \$7,247 and \$333 in net proceeds from the issuance of common stock relating to the exercise of stock options. These sources of cash flow were partially offset by payment of annual dividends of \$1,894, a final principal payment on a term loan with French bank of \$441, an \$810 principal payment on a Nord LB term loan, payments of deferred debt issuance costs of \$167 and payment on capital lease obligations of \$308.

Table of Contents

Net cash flows used in financing activities for the first nine months of 2007 were \$1,627. Significant uses of cash for financial activities included a \$1,821 payment of annual dividends and \$389 principal payment on a term loan with French bank. Sources of cash flow from financial activities include \$563 in net proceeds from the issuance of common stock relating to the exercise of stock options.

Payment of Dividends

We paid annual dividends in 2008 and 2007 and may continue to pay annual dividends in the future subject to capital availability and periodic determinations that cash dividends are in compliance with our debt covenants and are in the best interests of our stockholders, but we cannot assure you that such payments will continue. Future dividends may be affected by, among other items, our views on potential future capital requirements, future business prospects, changes in federal income tax laws, or any other factors that our board of directors deems relevant. Any decision to pay cash dividends is and will continue to be at the discretion of board of directors.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our historical consolidated financial statements and notes to our historical consolidated financial statements contain information that is pertinent to our management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations. Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires that our management make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and requires the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. However, the accounting principles used by us generally do not change our reported cash flows or liquidity. Interpretation of the existing rules must be performed and judgments made on how the specifics of a given rule apply to us.

In management's opinion, the more significant reporting areas impacted by management's judgments and estimates are revenue recognition, asset impairments, business combinations, goodwill, intangible assets subject to amortization, impact of foreign currency exchange rate risks, income taxes and stock-based compensation expense. Management's judgments and estimates in these areas are based on information available from both internal and external sources, and actual results could differ from the estimates, as additional information becomes known. We believe the following to be our most critical accounting policies.

Revenue recognition

Sales of clad metal products and welding services are generally based upon customer specifications set forth in customer purchase orders and require us to provide certifications relative to metals used, services performed, and the results of any non-destructive testing that the customer has requested be performed. All issues of conformity of the product to specifications are resolved before the product is shipped and billed. Products related to the oilfield products segment, which include detonating cords, detonators, bi-directional boosters, and shaped charges, as well as, seismic related explosives and accessories, are standard in nature. In all cases, revenue is recognized only when all four of the following criteria have been satisfied: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; the price is fixed or determinable; delivery has occurred; and collection is reasonably assured. For contracts that require multiple shipments, revenue is recorded only for the units included in each individual shipment. If, as a contract proceeds toward completion, projected total cost on an individual contract indicates a potential loss, the Company will account for such anticipated loss.

2	2
э	3

Table of Contents

Asset impairments

We review our long-lived assets held and used by us for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable. In so doing, we estimate the future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the sum of the expected future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset to its estimated fair value. Otherwise, an impairment loss is not recognized. Long-lived assets to be disposed of, if any, are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

Business Combinations

We accounted for our business acquisition in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, using the purchase method of accounting. We allocated the total cost of the acquisition to the underlying net assets based on their respective estimated fair values. As part of this allocation process, we identified and attributed values and estimated lives to the intangible assets acquired. These determinations involved significant estimates and assumptions regarding multiple, highly subjective variables, including those with respect to future cash flows, discount rates, asset lives, and the use of different valuation models and therefore require considerable judgment. Our estimates and assumptions were based, in part, on the availability of listed market prices or other transparent market data. These determinations affect the amount of amortization expense recognized in future periods. We based our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable but are inherently uncertain.

Goodwill

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we test goodwill for impairment on a "reporting unit" level as defined by reference to SFAS No. 131*Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information* on at least an annual basis. A reporting unit is a group of businesses (i) for which discrete financial information is available and (ii) that have similar economic characteristics. We test goodwill for impairment using the following two-step approach:

We first determine the fair value of each reporting unit. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, this is an indicator that the goodwill assigned to that reporting unit might be impaired, which requires performance of the second step. We determine the fair value of our reporting units based on projected future discounted cash flows, which, in turn, are based on our views of uncertain variables such as growth rates, anticipated future economic conditions, and the appropriate discount rates relative to risk and estimates of residual values.

In the second step, if required, we allocate the fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit as if it had just been acquired in a business combination and as if the purchase price was equivalent to the fair value of the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is referred to as the implied fair value of goodwill. We then compare that implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill to the carrying value of that

goodwill. If the implied fair value is less than the carrying value, we recognize an impairment loss for the excess.

The use of different estimates or assumptions within our discounted cash flow model when determining the fair value of our reporting units or using a methodology other than a discounted cash flow model could result in different values for reporting units and could result in an impairment charge.

34

Table of Contents

Intangible assets subject to amortization

An intangible asset that is subject to amortization is reviewed when impairment indicators are present in accordance with SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets*. We compare the expected undiscounted future operating cash flows associated with finite-lived assets to their respective carrying values to determine if the asset is fully recoverable. If the expected future operating cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value, we estimate the fair value of the asset. Impairment is recognized when the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable and when the carrying value exceeds fair value. The projected cash flows require several assumptions related to, among other things, relevant market factors, revenue growth, if any, and operating margins. While we believe our assumptions are reasonable, changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on our financial results.

Impact of foreign currency exchange rate risks

The functional currency for our foreign operations is the applicable local currency for each affiliate company. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries for which the functional currency is the local currency are translated at exchange rates in effect at period-end, and the statements of operations are translated at the average exchange rates during the period. Exchange rate fluctuations on translating foreign currency financial statements into U.S. dollars that result in unrealized gains or losses are referred to as translation adjustments. Cumulative translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of stockholders' equity and are included in other cumulative comprehensive income (loss). Transactions denominated in currencies other than the local currency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time such transactions arise. Subsequent changes in exchange rates result in transaction gains and losses, which are reflected in income as unrealized (based on period-end translations) or realized (based upon settlement of the transactions). Cash flows from our operations in foreign countries are translated at actual exchange rates when known, or at the average rate for the period. As a result, amounts related to assets and liabilities reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows will not agree to changes in the corresponding balances in the consolidated balance sheets. The effects of exchange rate changes on cash balances held in foreign currencies are reported as a separate line item below cash flows from financing activities.

Income taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ("SFAS 109"), which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for the expected future income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in our financial statements but not our tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on income tax credits and on the temporary differences between the Consolidated Financial Statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. We routinely evaluate deferred tax assets to determine if they will, more likely than not, be recovered from future projected taxable income; if not, we record an appropriate valuation allowance.

We continue to maintain a full valuation allowance of \$111 against the carryforward tax attributes of a state in which we are no longer considered to be doing business.

35

Table of Contents

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), *Share-Based Payment* ("SFAS 123R"). Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date based on the value of the award and is recognized as expense ratably over the requisite service period of the award. The fair value of restricted stock awards is based on the fair value of the Company's stock on the date of grant. Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of stock options at the grant date requires judgment, including estimating stock price volatility, forfeiture rates, and expected option life.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements* ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 was initially effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The FASB issued a staff position statement ("FSP") in February 2008 that deferred the required implementation date of SFAS 157 for certain assets and liabilities. The adoption of SFAS 157 in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 did not have a material impact on the Company's results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, *The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.* This Statement permits entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect the fair value option for any of its existing financial assets and liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), *Business Combinations* and SFAS No. 160, *Accounting and Reporting of Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements*, an amendment of ARB No. 51. These new standards will significantly change the accounting for and reporting of business combination transactions and noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated financial statements. SFAS Nos. 141(R) and 160 are required to be adopted simultaneously and are effective for the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Thus, we are required to adopt these Standards on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company is in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption SFAS Nos. 141(R) and 160 will have on its results of operations or financial position.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, *Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities*. SFAS 161 requires additional disclosures related to the use of derivative instruments, the accounting for derivatives and how derivatives impact financial statements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 161 on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

There have been no events that materially affect our quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk from that reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's Exchange Act reports is accurately recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily applied its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)). Based on that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There have been no changes in the Company's internal controls during the quarter ended September 30, 2008 or in other factors that could materially affect the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

The Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that the Company's disclosure controls or its internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. As a result of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. As a result of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Accordingly, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the disclosure controls and procedures are met.

37

Table of Contents

Part II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

None.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K includes a detailed discussion of our risk factors. The information presented below updates and should be read in conjunction with the risk factors and information disclosed in our Form 10-K.

Our backlog figures may not accurately predict future sales.

We define "backlog" at any given point in time to consist of all firm, unfulfilled purchase orders and commitments at that time. Generally speaking, we expect to fill most items of backlog within the following 12 months. However, since orders may be rescheduled or canceled, and a significant portion of our net sales is derived from a small number of customers, backlog is not necessarily indicative of future sales levels. Moreover, we cannot be sure of when during the future 12-month period we will be able to recognize revenue corresponding to our backlog; nor can we be certain that revenues corresponding to our backlog will not fall into periods beyond the 12-month horizon.

Weakness in the general global economy may adversely affect certain segments of our end market customers and reduce our sales and results of operations.

We supply products to customers that fabricate industrial equipment for various capital-intensive industries. The current weakness in the general global economy may adversely affect our end market customers, causing them to cancel or postpone new plant or infrastructure construction, expansion or maintenance and retrofitting projects that use our products. While to date we have not seen material signs of postponements or cancellations of projects important to us, there can be no assurances that general economic conditions will not lessen demand for our products and reduce our sales and results of operations.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6.

Exhibits

31.1	Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2	Certification of the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1	Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2	Certification of the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
_	39

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DYNAMIC MATERIALS CORPORATION (Registrant)

Date: October 31, 2008

/s/ Richard A. Santa

Richard A. Santa, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

40

I, Yvon Pierre Cariou, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Dynamic Materials Corporation;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
 material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
 the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: October 31, 2008

/s/ Yvon Pierre Cariou Yvon Pierre Cariou President and Chief Executive Officer of Dynamic Materials Corporation I, Richard A. Santa, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Dynamic Materials Corporation;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
 material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
 the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: October 31, 2008

/s/ Richard A. Santa Richard A. Santa Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Dynamic Materials Corporation

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Dynamic Materials Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Yvon Pierre Cariou, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

October 31, 2008

/s/ Yvon Pierre Cariou Yvon Pierre Cariou President and Chief Executive Officer of Dynamic Materials Corporation

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Dynamic Materials Corporation and will be retained by Dynamic Materials Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Dynamic Materials Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Richard A. Santa, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

October 31, 2008

/s/ Richard A. Santa Richard A. Santa Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Dynamic Materials Corporation

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Dynamic Materials Corporation and will be retained by Dynamic Materials Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

1